

# Constitution

1. The name of the Society is  
**University College of the Cariboo  
Nursing undergraduate Society**
  
2. The purposes of the Society are:
  - a) To provide a means for responsible and effective participation in the organization and implementation of Nursing student affairs at U. C. C.
  - b) To provide an official and responsible student organization with the purpose to act on student complaints, investigate student problems and participate in decisions affecting Nursing students at U. C. C.
  - c) To foster awareness of the students' position at the local campus.
  - d) To promote educational, social, and financial activities of the Nursing student body.
  
3. The society shall be carried on without purpose of gain for its members and any profits or other accretions to the Society shall be used for promoting its objects.  
**This clause is unalterable.**
  
4. Upon the winding up or dissolution of the Society, any assets of the Society remaining after the satisfaction of its debts and liabilities shall be given or transferred to such Canadian organization or organizations promoting objects similar to those set out in Paragraph 2 herein as may be decided by the members of the Society at the time of winding up or dissolution.  
**This clause is unalterable.**

## **U.C.C. Undergraduate Society By-Laws**

### **BY-LAW 1 - INTERPRETATION**

**Here set forth, in numbered clauses, the bylaws providing for the matters referred to in section 6(1) of the Society Act and any other bylaws.**

1. All references to the singular shall include the plural, the singular; and all reference to the masculine shall include the feminine, and the feminine the masculine.
2. "Member in good standing of the Society " means those persons who satisfy the requirements of By-Laws 2, and who have paid all fines or penalties levied in accordance with these By-Laws.
3. "Members at large" refers to all members in the Society.
4. "Faculty Member" refers to an instructor within the Nursing Department at the University College of the Cariboo, who is employed full time or part time or on a contractual basis.
5. "Summer terms" means that period between June 1st and September of 1st of each year.
6. "UCC Nursing Undergraduate Society" refers to University College of the Cariboo Nursing Undergraduate Society.
7. "RN/BSN Program" means the generic baccalaureate program with bridge in/bridge out diploma/degree option, at the University College of the Cariboo.

### **BY-LAW 2 - MEMBERS**

The members of the Nursing Undergraduate Society shall be:

1. All RN/BSN students who have paid society fees for the current Institution semester who, in addition, are registered in the RN/BSN program at UCC.
2. All students who were previously enrolled in the RN/BSN program but have not met the academic requirements and remain in the program as a part-time student.
3. Membership in the Society shall cease when a member withdraws or completes the program.
4. Suspension or Expulsion.
  - (a) A demand to suspend or expel (which shall include refusal to pay fees) a member shall be in writing, shall state clearly the charge against such member and shall be signed by the complainant.
  - (b) Except for non-payments of fees, a member may be suspended or expelled only for such acts or omissions as shall constitute conduct unbecoming a member or conduct detrimental to the best interest of the

Society and in the fulfilment of its purposes.

- (c) A member may be suspended or expelled for such acts or omissions including all unethical and or unprofessional conduct as outlined by the UCC Nursing student handbook, as well as the provisions of the Nurses (Registered) Act of B.C. and the Canadian Nurse's Association Code of Ethics and the RNABC Standards for practice in British Columbia.
- (d) A member charged with wrongdoing, and facing suspension or expulsion therefore, shall be informed of the charges in writing; shall be accorded a hearing upon demand therefore, and shall be suspended or expelled only following two (2) weeks' notice to the member of the pending proceedings and upon a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting at a General Meeting of the Society at which quorum is present.

5. **Appeal.**

- (a) Any person aggrieved by suspension or expulsion may appeal the same to the Board of Directors whose decision in the matter shall be final.

6. **Re-admittance of Suspended or Expelled Members.**

- (a) No former Society member having been suspended or expelled for cause, or having resigned to avoid suspension or expulsion for cause, shall be re-admitted to membership except by a two thirds affirmative votes by the Board of Directors and confirmed by a majority affirmative vote of Society members present and voting at a General Meeting of Society, at which a quorum is present.

**BY-LAW 3 - RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF MEMBERS**

The rights, duties and obligations of members of the society shall be as provided in the By-Laws of the Society.

**BY-LAW 4 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

1. The Directors or Executive of the Society shall be called the Student Board.
2. The members of the Student Board shall be members of good standing of the society at the time of their election.
3. The Student Board shall consist of:
  - (a) President
  - (b) Vice President

---

**U.C.C. Nursing undergraduate Society By-Laws  
adopted as original August 1995**

- (c) Treasurer
- (d) Secretary
- (e) Representative 1st Year (Section 1 and 2)
- (f) Representative 2nd Year (Section 1 and 2)
- (g) Representative 3rd Year (Section 1 and 2)
- (h) Representative 4th Year (Section 1 and 2)
- (i) Representative Faculty Member

## **BY-LAW 5 - POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE STUDENT BOARD**

The Student Board shall:

1. Act as the Board of Directors of the Society.
2. Be the only recognized medium of communication between the Society and its members and:
  - (a) The institution authorities and the College Council or University College Council/Board and,
  - (b) The general Public.
3. Subject to provisions of the By-Laws and constitution exercise full control of all activities of the Society. The student board shall have the power to make rulings governing and binding upon the Society in connection with such activities and any such activities and any such rulings shall be final. The Student Board shall have the power to establish rules of discipline governing the Societys' members and to administer and enforce such rules subject only to the qualification that the maximum fine be \$5.00.
4. Meet regularly and call and hold such special meetings as may be required.
5. Have the power to engage and pay such assistance as it may require or deem necessary for the efficient conduct of the business and other activities of the Society and to delegate to such persons powers or work as may seem fit.
6. Not approve a capital expenditure in excess of \$2,000.00 without approval, by a majority vote by members of the Society who are present at a General Meeting.
7. The individual powers and duties of members of the Student Board are:
  - (a) **President**
    - i) Shall have the power to convene the Student Board at any time, provided that 24 hours notice has been given to each member of the Executive.
    - ii) Shall represent the student body on formal occasions.
    - iii) Shall undertake all other duties usually falling to the office of President of a Society.
    - iv) Shall be a signing officer.
    - v) Shall be an ex-officio member of all standing committees

created by the Student Board and have the power to create such committees.

- vi) Shall act as a liaison between the Student Board and
  - a) On-campus interest groups
  - b) The College Administration
  - c) University College Council

**(b) Vice President**

- i) Shall assume and carry out the duties of the president during his/her absence or in the event of the resignation or impeachment of the president.
- ii) Shall be a signing officer.
- iii) Shall co-ordinate student representation on all committees of the Student Board and those committees to which the Student Board makes appointments.
- iv) Shall act as liaison between the Student Board and
  - a) On-Campus interest groups.
  - b) The College Administration.
  - c) University College Council
- v) Shall handle inquiries from other student unions and society's in consultation with appropriate members of the Student Board.

**(c) Secretary:**

- i) Shall ensure that minutes of meetings are recorded and kept at the office of the Society.
- ii) Shall be a signing officer.
- iii) Shall ensure that copies of the Society's correspondence are kept at the office of the Society.
- iv) Shall act as liaison between executive and employees of the Society, and:
  - (a) Relay executive directives to employees of the Society.
  - (b) Report at each meeting of the Executive on the status of the Society office and Society employees.
- v) Shall circulate an agenda of the next meeting to all directors at least one week prior to the meeting.

**(d) Treasurer:**

- i) Shall prepare the budget of the Society.

- ii) Shall immediately, upon receipt of funds, deposit them with a chartered bank and/or credit union selected by resolution of the student board.
- iii) Shall be a signing officer.
- iv) Shall authorize payment of funds not exceeding \$100.00. Accounts exceeding \$100.00 must be authorized and approved by Student Board before payment. All accounts shall be shall be presented to the Student Board at its next regular meeting following the date of such payment and obtain approval and ratification of the Student Board.
- v) Shall keep careful account and be responsible for all monies received and disbursed by or on behalf of the Society.
- vi) Shall disburse travel monies according to travel policy.
- vii) Shall render a statement of receipts and disbursements and of the assets and capital position of the Society and a statement of profit and loss within four(4) weeks of a request for such information by resolution of the Student Board.
- viii) Shall prepare or have prepared a profit and loss statement and a balance sheet for consideration at its annual general meeting and shall report to the Society on the Society's financial affairs.
- ix) Shall be consulted by members of the Student Board intending to propose a resolution of the Student Board or to a general meeting which will require an expenditure in excess of \$250.00

(e) **Representative Faculty Member:**

- i) Shall be responsible for keeping the Student Board informed of the actions or plans of external organizations, Federal and Provincial Governments and/or Ministries and student organizations which have a direct bearing on the RN/BScN program at U.C.C. and/or the Nursing Student body or the Society.
- ii) Shall act as liaison between the Faculty and Administration at U.C.C and the Student Board.

f) **Representative Student member Years 1 Through 4:**

- i) Shall maintain active communications between their constituencies and the Student Board.

- ii) Shall participate in operations of the Board through active participation in its committees.
      - iii) Student Representatives shall call and chair meetings of their constituents at least once per month during the class and program terms.
    - (h)
      - i) Subject to a three-quarters (3/4) affirmative vote of the executive, an Executive member will be deemed to have delivered her/his resignation from the Executive if s/he fails to attend four (4) consecutive or seven (7) of any ten (10) consecutive meetings of the Executive.
        - ii) The Electoral Committee shall, at the request of the Board, be empowered to investigate the circumstances surrounding the non-attendance of an Executive member, as referred to in section 5.7.(g).i), and shall submit a written report, including recommendations, if any, to the Student Board. Said report shall be due ten (10) days following the request.
8. Quorum for meetings of the Student Board shall be not less than seventy five percent (75%) of the members of the Student Board. The decisions of the Student Board shall be governed by a simple majority.
9. The Student Board may, in the event that a Student Representative position (as indicated in By-Law 4, section 3, subsections (e) through (h)) is vacant or if the holder of the position resigns or is impeached, appoint from the Nursing Student Body of that year ( with a 75% majority of the Board) a Rep to take up the duties of the vacant position until such time as a general election can be held. If more that one person wishes to be appointed to the position, all candidates must petition the Board with at least ten (10) signatures from their class and make a presentation to the Student Board, then the Board will vote to determine which of the candidates will be appointed. The Student Board must advertise the vacant position for at least two (2) weeks before making an appointment.
10. All Board members shall spend at least one (1) hour per week in an office in order to be available to the Student Body for questions.

### **BY-LAW 6 - THE STUDENT BOARD IN THE SUMMER**

Where there is a conflict between the provisions of any other By-Law, the provisions of this By-Law shall govern.

1. The powers given by By-Law 6 to the Society shall not be exercisable by the Student Board or its delegates in the summer months.
2. The Treasurer of the Student Board shall allocate monies during the summer term from Society fees and other income accruing to the Society in that fiscal year only.
3. The Student Board shall meet publicly a minimum of once per month during the summer term, in accordance to the availability of the Student Board members based on Quorum.

### **BY-LAW 7 - GENERAL MEETINGS**

1. The Annual General Meetings of the Society shall be held within 6 months of the end of the Society's fiscal year.
2. Notice of the Annual General Meeting must be given fourteen (14) days prior to the date on which the meeting will be held. Sufficient notice will be deemed to have been given by the posting of conspicuous notice not less than 8" x 14" in size upon bulletin boards with in the Science building at U.C.C, and by publishing the notice in two (2) consecutive issues of the Student newspaper, or in the event of such not being available, a community newspaper, the first publication being at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the meeting.
3. Special General Meetings of the Society may be convened at any time by the resolution of 2/3 of the members of the Student Board or by notice to the Student Board by way of a petition duly signed by ten per cent (10%) of the members of the Society.
4. A Special General Meeting convened during the summer term shall not have the power to commit funds of the Society except to the limit of funds paid by members of the society during the summer term.
5. Fourteen (14) days notice shall be required prior to the holding of a Special General Meeting. Sufficient notice shall be deemed to have been given by compliance with the provisions of By-Law 7.2 relating to notice. The agenda for all general meetings will be open.
6. Only members of the Society shall be entitled to vote at a General Meeting and each member is entitled to one vote. In order to exercise his/her vote, the member must be present at the meeting at the time the vote is put, and no votes by proxy shall be allowed.
7. The resolutions of a General Meeting shall be governed by a simple majority of votes cast, except where the provisions of the "Societies Act" or the By-Laws require otherwise.
8. i) Quorum for all general meetings shall be 25% of the

- members in good standing or 100 whichever is lesser.
- ii) If the duly called meeting fails to achieve quorum, the meeting shall be reconvened at the same time and address one week hence, and the members attending the subsequent meeting shall constitute quorum.
  - iii) Said subsequent meeting shall be announced by the posting of notices of not less than 8" x 11" in conspicuous areas about the Science building and the Administration Building.

### **BY-LAW 8 - AUDITORS**

The Auditors of the Society shall be appointed at the Annual General Meeting.

1. The remuneration to be paid to the Auditors by the Society shall be determined by the Student Board.
2. The Auditors of the Society shall have the right to examine the books, records and accounts of the Society and shall be entitled to require from any and all members of the Society, including the Student Board, such information and explanation as may be required by the auditors for the due performance of their duties.
3. The Auditors shall audit the previous fiscal year of the Society. The fiscal year shall be from September 1st to August 31st.
4. The Auditors shall prepare an Annual report for submission by the Treasurer of the Student Board to the Annual General Meeting of the Society, and the meeting without material omission. Without limiting the generality of the forgoing, the Auditors shall expressly state:
  - (a) Whether they have obtained all information and explanation required and whether they have been granted free access to the files, records, and accounts of the Society.
  - (b) Whether in their opinion, the balance sheet forming part of their report is properly drawn so as to exhibit a true and fair representation of the financial affairs of the Society.

### **BY-LAW 9 - THE SEAL OF THE SOCIETY**

The seal of the Society shall not be affixed to any instrument or contract unless authorized by resolution of the Student Board and in the presence of such members of the Student Board as may be prescribed in such a resolution. The treasurer shall have custody of the seal of the Society.

### **BY-LAW 10 - BORROWING**

1. In order to carry out the purposes of the society, the Student Board may, on behalf of

and in the name of the Society, raise or secure the payment or repayment of money in such manner as they decide and in particular but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, by the issue of debentures.

2. No debenture shall be issued without the sanction of a special resolution.
3. The members may by special resolution restrict the borrowing powers of the directors but a restriction so imposed expires at the next Annual General Meeting.

### **BY-LAW 11 - AMENDMENTS**

The constitution and By-Laws may be amended only by special resolution of the Society.

1. A special resolution amending the Constitution shall require a majority of three quarters (3/4).
2. A Special Resolution amending the By-Laws shall require a majority of three quarters (3/4).
3. The majorities mentioned in By-Law 11(1) and 11(2) are the majorities of members attending a meeting considering the proposed amendments, providing that any such meeting shall have quorum present.
4. Notice of a proposed amendment howsoever initiated shall be given in accordance with the By-Laws providing for due notice of a special General Meeting. If a Special General Meeting is initiated by a petition for the purpose of an amendment to the Constitution or By-Laws, the text of the proposed amendments shall be delivered and given in the same manner.
5. Amendments may be initiated by:
  - (a) The Student Board,
  - (b) Any member of the Society requesting a Special General Meeting for the consideration of a proposed amendment, provided that the proposed amendment, shall be accompanied by a petition setting out the text of the proposed amendment and requesting a Special General Meeting for its consideration and accompanied by the signatures of not less than 25% of the current membership.

### **BY-LAW 12 - ELECTIONS**

1. The U.C.C Undergraduate Society is a non- partisan society, and in recognition of this spirit that guides the U.C.C. Undergraduate Society, there will be no slates, special interest groups or parties recognized in the election, nor will said groups be recognized on the ballot.
2. (a) Any student, candidate or not, who acts in an inappropriate manner, including but not restricted to, defacing or removing (from an appropriate location) of posters, threatening any candidate or

- group of candidates, posting posters against a candidate, Etc., may be suspended from the Society, assessed a fine of not more than \$50.00, and the matter of the inappropriate behaviour shall be referred to the U.C.C Nursing department or any appropriate administrative committee for further discipline. In serious matters the RCMP will be notified. If this student is a candidate, the candidate may be disqualified from the election.
3. Barring any unforeseen circumstances, elections shall be held in January for all Board positions. The maximum term of office shall be from March 1st to March 1st of the following year. The only exception to this will be with the initial year (1995) The first Election will be held at the end of September, the next election will be held in January of 1997.
  4. Due notice of elections shall be deemed sufficient if the following is adhered to:
    - (a) 8" x 11" posters announcing the upcoming elections have been posted in prominent positions throughout the U.C.C Science building at least two (2) weeks before the opening of the nomination period. The posters shall include the following information:
      - i) The day the voting will take place,
      - ii) The positions vacant,
      - iii) Dates for closing of the nomination period,
      - iv) The place for pick-up and deposit of nomination papers.
      - v) The length of time limited to campaigning for office.
    - (b) An advertisement announcing the dates for and closing of the nomination period shall be placed in the Student Newspaper, or in the event that the said is not available, a community newspaper at least one (1) week prior to the opening of the nominations.
  5. The nomination period shall be a minimum of one (1) week in duration.
  6. Nomination papers shall contain the name and student number of the member nominated, the position being sought, and no less than 15 signatures of members in good standing of the Society who are entitled to vote in elections for that position.
  7. Following the close of nominations:
    - (a) 8 1/2" x 11" posters announcing the candidates nominated no more than 48 hours following the close of nominations will be placed on bulletin boards in the Science building.
    - (b) With respect to (a) above, the names of nominees for each office shall be placed after the title of each office in alphabetical order according to surname.
    - (c) 8 1/2" x 11" posters announcing the dates, times and places of polling shall be placed in prominent positions throughout the Science Building.
  8. Campaigning for all offices shall be limited to the period between the close of nominations and the day of voting.

9. Campaigning expenses shall be limited to \$50.00
10. Posters shall be posted showing the candidates name or picture, and the size shall be limited to a maximum of 11" x 17". All campaign posters and other related paraphernalia shall be removed by the commencement of polling. The Electoral Standing committee may impose a maximum fine of five (\$5.00) dollars as a penalty to the candidate who fails to comply with this By-Law.
11. The form of the ballot shall be decided by the Electoral Standing committee provided that the candidates for each office shall be listed alphabetically by surname.
12. If only one (1) nomination is received for each singular position, then the nominee will be considered elected by acclamation.
13. Sealed ballot boxes are to be returned to the location determined by the electoral committee immediately upon the completion of voting. The ballots will be counted by the electoral committee. Where positions are contested, candidates receiving a majority of votes cast for that position shall be declared duly elected. Scrutineers may be provided by all candidates to oversee the counting of ballots.
14. A candidate may request a recount of votes cast, within seventy two (72) hours of the close of polls. After this time, the ballots for the election shall be destroyed, and recycled by the chairperson of the Electoral Committee.
15. In the event of a strike , Act of God, or other such event that may delay the electoral procedure, the Electoral Committee shall make the decision as to how and when the electoral procedure may be best completed.
16. The period of polling shall be minimum of one week in duration.

### **BY-LAW 13 - BY-ELECTIONS**

1. Upon the death, resignation or impeachment of an officer of the Student Board, the Student Board may by resolution appoint a member of the society to fulfil the duties of the office so vacated.
2. All By-Elections shall be held in accordance with the procedures contained in the By-Law governing elections, except that the By-Elections may be held one (1) week following the date nominations close.
3. The Student Board may resolve to hold By-Elections to fill any of its vacated positions.
4. In the Event that death, resignation or impeachment of an officer of the Student Board makes it impossible for the Board to achieve quorum of members for its regular meetings, the Electoral Committee must hold By-Elections to fill all vacant positions.

### **BY-LAW 14 - RESIGNATION OR IMPEACHMENT**

1. Proceedings for impeachment of a person holding a position on the Student Board

may be initiated by:

- (a) a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Student Board, or
  - (b) the delivery to the Student board of a petition signed by no less than 25 % of those eligible to run for the position in question and which lists the specific charge(s) against the officer in question.
2. Upon proper initiation of impeachment proceedings against an officer of the Student Board, the Electoral Committee shall investigate the charge(s) and shall report their findings at the next regular meeting of the Student Board. Upon receipt of the Electoral Standing Committee's report, the Student Board must:
- (a) Call a Special General Meeting to consider impeachment of the Officer in question,
  - (b) Approve an impeachment resolution and place it before the members for a referendum.
3. In the event that the Student Board calls a Special General Meeting to consider the impeachment of a member of the Student Board, due notice for the meeting shall include a list of specific charge(s) against the officer in question.
- (a) The meeting thus called shall be conducted in the same fashion as a meeting to consider a Special Resolution and a three quarters (3/4) majority of those present shall be required to impeach a student Board member. Upon such a resolution being carried by the majority indicated, the officer so impeached shall be deemed to have delivered his/her resignation.
  - (b) Quorum at an impeachment meeting shall be no less than 20% of those eligible to run for the position in question.
  - (c) In the event that the meeting thus called fails to reach quorum, the proceedings shall cease.
4. A referendum on impeachment shall be conducted according to the provisions for notice in By-Law 7(2).
- (a) Due notice shall be deemed to have been given by compliance with the provisions for notice in By-Law 7(2) provided that such notice includes a list of specific charge(s) against the officer in question.
  - (b) Polling for the referendum shall be conducted one (1) week after the Student Boards decision to put the question of impeachment to referendum.
  - (c) Should less than 75% of those eligible to run for the council position vote in the referendum, the impeachment proceedings shall cease. Otherwise, a three-quarters (3/4) majority of those voting shall be required to impeach an officer of the Student Board. Upon such a resolution being carried by the majority indicated, the officer so impeached shall be deemed to have delivered her/his resignation.

### **BY-LAW 15 - REFERENDA**

1. In addition to Annual and Special General meetings, the members may vote on resolutions concerning the business of the Society by means of a referendum, in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act.
2. Resolutions may be put to referendum by a simple majority vote of the Student Board, except where prohibited in these By-Laws, or upon presentation of a petition to the Student Board which contains the proposed resolution and the signatures of 5% of the members of the Society.
3. Upon presentation of a duly signed petition for referendum, to the Student Board, the Board must resolve to hold a referendum on the proposed resolution(s) within the following three(3) weeks.
4. The referendum shall be conducted by the Electoral Standing Committee based upon the powers given in By-Law 16.

### **BY-LAW 16 - ELECTORAL COMMITTEE**

1. For any Nursing Student Population vote including, but not limited to, elections, referenda and impeachment proceedings, the Student Board shall strike an Electoral Committee.
2. This committee shall consist of a Chief Electoral Officer who is a member in good standing of the Student Board and who is elected by a 2/3 majority of the Student Board, and two(2) other members in good standing of the Society selected by the Chief Electoral Officer and ratified by a 2/3 majority vote of the Student Board. The Chief Electoral Officer shall act as Chairperson of the Electoral Committee. If possible, at least one member of the Electoral Committee shall be a member of the Student Board.
3. The Electoral Committee :
  - (a) Shall have the power to interpret any and all U.C.C Nursing Undergraduate Society By-Laws and Standing resolutions and set rules and make decisions based on these interpretations.
  - (b) Shall have the power to enforce all set rules.
  - (c) May rule a candidates candidacy, a referendum, an election or By-election or any other event the Committee has power over, invalid for any violation of the rules, interpretations or decisions made by the Committee.
  - (d) May require candidates to produce receipts for campaign expenses.

- (e) Shall hold an all candidate's forum no later than two(2) days before the Student population vote.
  - (f) Shall hold a Student population vote no more than two(2) weeks after the closing of nominations.
  - (g) Shall submit a report on the conduct and results of all Student population votes to the Student Board for ratification.
4. There shall be no partisan classroom campaigning for any Student population vote. The Electoral Committee may interpret partisan campaigning in classrooms as breaking the rules set for campaigning.

### **BY-LAW 17 - RECORDS**

1. The Student Board shall cause minutes and records of all meetings of the Student Board and the Society to be kept in books provided for this purpose, as well as on computer file.
2. The minutes of the meetings of the Society and Student Board shall be kept at the office of the Secretary of the Society.
3. The books, records and accounts of the Society may be inspected by members of the society at U.C.C., provided there is twenty four(24) hours notice given to the Secretary of the Society by the member(s) wishing to inspect them.

### **BY-LAW 18 - GENERAL POWERS OF THE SOCIETY**

1. The Society shall have the power to make such policy from time to time as it may deem necessary or advisable with respect to the activities of the Student Board and to repeal, alter or amend such policy in such manner as it may deem necessary or advisable.

### **BY-LAW 19 - LIABILITY OF THE SOCIETY**

1. The Liability of the Society shall be as defined by the Societies Act.
2. The Society is not responsible for its members or groups of members except where:
  - (a) The relationship between the Society and the members is that of master and servant or principal and agent, and,
  - (b) The acts and behaviour are such that the Society would be civilly liable to U.C.C or the public, and,
  - (c) the act or behaviour does not fall within the definition of a crime as defined in the "Criminal Code of Canada", and,

- (d) the member or group of members can be definitely identified beyond a reasonable doubt.
3. For the purpose of this By-Law, the expression "Student population" refers to members in good standing of the Society.

### **BY-LAW 20 - SIGNING OFFICERS**

1. The signing officers shall be the President, Vice President, Secretary and the Treasurer.

